





At about this time, probably triggered by the
renewed exploration and development activity,
that formerly unnamed bay on the north shore of
Lake Athabasca was named for John Nicholson.
Nicholson Bay has been so identified on official
maps of the area since at least 1949.

Development continued into the early 1950s
at the Nicholson Mine, with more blasting and
drilling, two mine shafts, and considerable
lateral work done underground. With enthusiasm
running high, the company was reorganized
into Consolidated Nicholson Mines Ltd. and
preparations were made to begin continuous
mining. From 1954 through 1956, mined
uranium ore was stockpiled until winter each
year. Then, when the ice thickness could
support the weight of ore-carrying trucks,
it was transported, at a rate of about 227
tonnes per day, along a 29 km ice-road over
Lake Athabasca and Beaverlodge Lake to the
Eldorado mill (near present-day Uranium City)
for processing.

The main uranium production ended in 1956,
when the economic limit of the orebody was
reached, although a smaller company, KLK
Mining Co., mined the highest-grade remnants
between 1958 and 1959. This final phase

of mining ended in 1959, when the United
States, United Kingdom, and Canada stopped
stockpiling uranium, causing the market to
collapse. By this time, the Nicholson Mine
had produced approximately thirteen thousand
tonnes of uranium ore which, after processing
by Eldorado, would have yielded approximately
50 tonnes of uranium oxide ‘yellow-cake.” The
yellowcake was sent to Eldorado’s refinery
in Port Hope, Ontario. Although the fate of
the refined Nicholson uranium has not been
declassified, it could have been used by Atomic
Energy of Canada Ltd. for Canada’s nuclear
reactor program or it may have been sold to the
United States or the United Kingdom for their
nuclear programs.

From time to time, between the 1960s and “80s,
what had been Nicholson Mines Ltd. changed
hands, and the mine itself was re-evaluated for
renewed uranium production but without finding
any further economic potential, and the mine has
remained abandoned. It is perhaps fortunate that
the Nicholson site is in such a remote location.
Visits to the site are not recommended, due
to a wide range of residual hazards, including
mine openings, deteriorating buildings, mine
equipment, debris and, of course, radioactivity.
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